DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Tuesday, 14 April 2015 at The Board Room - Municipal Building, Widnes

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chairman), Morley (Vice-Chairman), Cole, R. Hignett, S. Hill, June Roberts, C. Plumpton Walsh, J. Stockton, Thompson and Woolfall

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Wainwright

Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: A. Jones, J. Tully, T. Gibbs, M. Noone, A. Plant, J. Eaton and

R. Wakefield

Also in attendance: 19 Members of the Public

ITEMS DEALT WITH UNDER DUTIES EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action

DEV52 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meetings held on 2 March 2015 and 9 March 2015 having been circulated, were taken as read and signed as a correct record.

DEV53 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV54 - 15/00013/FUL - PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF 53 NO. DWELLINGS WITH ACCESS FROM LIVERPOOL ROAD INCLUDING OPEN SPACE. LANDSCAPING AND BOUNDARY TREATMENTS AND - 15/00100/106/MOD -APPLICATION TO DISCHARGE CLAUSE 5.2 OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENT DATED 28/04/1995 BETWEEN LIVERPOOL ROMAN CATHOLIC **ARCHDIOCESAN** INCORPORATED; CHESHIRE COUNTY TRUSTEES COUNCIL; ICI CHEMICALS AND POLYMERS LTD AND HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL ON LAND AT WIDNES RECREATION GROUND, LIVERPOOL ROAD, WIDNES, **CHESHIRE**

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined in the report together with background information in respect of the site.

It was noted that outline planning permission for up to 50 dwellings was granted on this site by the Committee in 2013; therefore the principle of residential development on the site was already established.

In relation to the first application, Officers advised that further to the representations referred to in the report; a Ward Councillor had requested that a green buffer of planting be introduced between the Foxley Heath Estate and the development site. Although Officers advised that this was not necessary, condition number 5 could be amended to secure the submission of a landscaping scheme if the Committee requested. Further, two additional independent material planning objections had been received since the production of the report. These representations raised no new issues to those already discussed in the report.

The second application proposed to discharge Clause 5.2 of Section 106 Agreement dated 28 April 1995, between Liverpool Roman Catholic Archdiocesan Trustees Incorporated; Cheshire County Council; ICI Chemicals and Polymers Ltd; and Halton Borough Council. The Clause related to the land which was attached to the Section 106 Agreement being used as greenspace only. The land subject of the full planning application fell within this area and therefore the discharge was requested.

The Committee was addressed by Mr Symes who objected to the development on behalf of local residents. He argued that no public consultation had been carried out in respect of the proposal and therefore the residents were not aware it. He stated that the area did not benefit from adequate sporting facilities as stated in the report and that the fields of the proposed site were well used by locals. He referred to a covenant in a Section 106 Agreement and objected to its removal. Also he said that brownfield sites should be used over greenfield sites and that the development would cause an increase in traffic on Liverpool Road and therefore an increase in pollution.

Mr Artis addressed the Committee on behalf of the applicant. He stated that he understood the concerns of local residents but reassured them that the applicant had worked closely with the Council and addressed all concerns raised by them. He also stated that Sports England had raised no objections to the application as stated in the

officer's report.

In response to Mr Symes' reference to a covenant on the land, the Council's Legal Representative informed the Committee that the covenant which had existed under the Section 106 Agreement no longer existed and was defunct. The wording was being removed for purely technical reasons.

Members considered the application, representations and updated information presented to them, and agreed that the application be approved subject to an amendment to condition number 5 to include the submission of a landscaping scheme.

RESOLVED: That

- a) Application 15/00013/FUL the application be approved subject to the following conditions:
 - 1. Time limit full permission;
 - 2. Plans approved;
 - 3. Site levels (BE1):
 - 4. Facing materials to be agreed (BE1 and BE2);
 - 5. Submission, implementation and maintenance of a landscaping scheme (BE1);
 - 6. Implementation of boundary treatments scheme(BE1);
 - 7. Implementation and management of Public Opens Space (BE1);
 - 8. Breeding birds protection (GE21);
 - 9. Hours of construction (BE1);
 - 10. Dust suppression during construction (BE1);
 - 11. Construction Management Plan (Highways) (BE1);
 - 12. Visibility splay (vehicles) (BE1);
 - 13. Provision and retention of parking for residential development (BE1);
 - 14. Retention of garages (BE1);
 - 15. Off-site highway improvements (BE1);
 - 16. Construction of site access (BE1);
 - 17. Speed camera relocation scheme (BE1);
 - 18. Biodiversity enhancements (GE21);
 - 19. Bat friendly lighting scheme (GE21);
 - 20. Drainage strategy (PR16); and
 - 21. Ground contamination (PR14).
- b) Application 15/00100/106MOD clause 5.2 of Section 106 Agreement between Liverpool Roman Catholic Archdiocesan Trustees Incorporated;

Cheshire County Council; ICI Chemicals and Polymers Ltd and Halton Borough Council be discharged.

To avoid any allegation of bias, Councillor R Hignett declared a Disclosable Other Interest in the following item as he was a Member of the PSJV Sci-Tech Daresbury Board.

DEV55 -15/00059/FUL -PROPOSED EXCAVATION AND **EARTHWORKS** TO FORM DEVELOPMENT **PLOT** INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION OF RETAINING WALL: CONSTRUCTION OF NEW Α VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS INTO AND THROUGHOUT THE SITE INCLUDING LIGHTING; DRAINAGE; AND SOFT LANDSCAPING WORKS TO FORM EXTENSION OF SITE CONNECTIVITY WORKS APPROVED UNDER PREVIOUS PLANNING PERMISSION AT DARESBURY SCIENCE PARK, KECKWICK LANE, DARESBURY, RUNCORN, WA4 4FS

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined in the report together with background information in respect of the site.

Officers advised the Committee that the additional and amended information requested from the applicant with regards to highway matters, as mentioned in the officer's report, had not yet been received. They requested delegated authority to approve the application once this had been received.

Members approved the application subject to the above delegation and the conditions listed below.

RESOLVED: To delegate authority to the Operational Director, in consultation with the Chairman or Vice Chairman, to resolve outstanding issues and approve the application subject to the following conditions and a Section 106 Agreement for highway improvements:

- 1. Time limit full permission;
- 2. Approved plans (BE1 and BE2);
- 3. Details of improvements of connectivity to Keckwick Lane South (BE1 and TP17);
- 4. Facing retaining wall materials (BE1 and BE2);
- 5. Landscaping scheme and implementation (BE1);
- 6. Boundary treatments scheme (BE22);
- 7. Tree protection measures (BE1 and GE27);
- 8. Breeding birds protection (GE21);
- 9. Details of bat and bird boxes (GE21);

- 10. Hours of construction (BE1);
- 11. Submission of a Construction Management Plan (Highways) (BE1):
- 12. Drainage strategy (PR16); and
- 13. Submission of details of future lighting (BE1 and GE21).

DEV56 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 URGENT BUSINESS

The Board was advised that a matter had arisen which required immediate attention by the Board (Minute 57 refers). Therefore, pursuant to Section 100 B (4) and 100 E and due to the timeframe for determination of the application, the Chairman ruled that the item be considered as a matter of urgency.

- 15/00155/P3JPA - PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM FORMER OFFICE BUILDING TO RESIDENTIAL (USE CLASS C3) CREATING 64 DWELLINGS COMPRISING 2 NO 1 BEDROOM APARTMENTS, 56 NO 2 BEDROOM APARTMENTS AND 6 NO 3 BEDROOM APARTMENTS, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF 45 NO CAR PARKING SPACES AT GROSVENOR HOUSE, NORTHWAY, RUNCORN, CHESHIRE

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined in the report together with background information in respect of the site.

It was noted that this application was not a full planning application and was permitted under Class J, subject to the condition that before beginning the development, the developer shall apply to the Local Planning Authority for a determination as to whether the prior approval of the authority would be required as to:

- Transport and highways impacts of the development;
- Contamination risks on the site; and
- Flooding risks on the site.

Officers advised that based on the above considerations the proposal was acceptable subject to the attachment of a condition which secured the submission of precise details relating to site access arrangements and parking provision and its implementation prior to the first use of the building for residential purposes.

Members considered the above matters and agreed

that the proposal was acceptable and that prior approval for change of use was required. The proposal was approved subject to a condition relating to parking provision.

RESOLVED: That the prior approval for the change of use from Class B1(a) offices to Class C3 (dwellinghouses) was required and was approved subject to a condition relating to parking provision.

Meeting ended at 7.10 p.m.